
MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF 

THE INDIANA STATE ETHICS COMMISSION 

July 12, 2018 

 

I. Call to Order 

 

A regular meeting of the State Ethics Commission (“Commission”) was called to order at 10:00 

a.m.  Commission members present included James Clevenger, Chairperson; Corinne Finnerty; 

Sue Anne Gilroy; and Katherine Noel.  Staff present included Jennifer Cooper, Ethics Director; 

Sam McGlone, Intern; Mark Mitchell, Special Agent; Lori Torres, Inspector General; Mike 

Lepper, Special Agent; Kelly Elliott, Staff Attorney; Tiffany Mulligan, Chief Legal Counsel; and 

Celeste Croft, Legal Assistant, Office of Inspector General. 

 

Others present were Stephanie McFarland, President/Senior Issue-Management Consultant, 

McFarland PR and Public Affairs; Art Logsdon, former Assistant Commissioner, State 

Department of Health; Matthew Savage, Deputy General Counsel, Department of Workforce 

Development; Alison Grand, Chief Legal Counsel, Department of Transportation; Rachel Russell, 

Ethics Officer/Deputy General Counsel, Department of Child Services; Deana Smith, 

Attorney/Ethics Officer, State Department of Health; Beth Green, General Counsel, Department 

of Workforce Development; Jared Prentice, Compliance and Ethics Director, Department of 

Revenue; Chris Serak, Ethics Officer, Department of Transportation; Sarah Kamhi, Assistant 

General Counsel/Director of Agreements, Department of Revenue; Tammera Glickman, Assistant 

General Counsel, Department of Administration; Stephanie Semaan, Intern, Department of 

Workforce Development; Mattheus Mitchel, Compliance & Ethics Specialist, Department of 

Revenue; Lori Buttram, Human Services Consultant 2, Family & Social Services Administration; 

Stephan Summers, Project Manager, Department of Transportation; Latosha Higgins, Managing 

Attorney/Ethics Officer, Family & Social Services Administration; Kristina Box, State Health 

Commissioner, State Department of Health; Joan Blackwell, Chief of Staff, Office of Attorney 

General; Kyle Gaddis, Deputy General Counsel, Economic Development Corporation; Kendra 

Leatherman, Legislative Director, Auditor of State; and Grant Kitcoff, Intern, Economic 

Development Corporation.   

 

II. Adoption of Amended Agenda and Approval of Minutes 

 

Commissioner Gilroy moved to adopt the amended Agenda and Commissioner Noel seconded the 

motion which passed (4-0).  Commissioner Finnerty moved to approve the Minutes of the June 14, 

2018 Commission Meeting and Commissioner Noel seconded the motion which passed (4-0). 

 

     III.       Inspector General’s Report 

 

Inspector General, Lori Torres, started her report by providing the Commission with a recap of 

quarter two.  She stated that the Office had completed 85 informal advisory opinions in quarter 

two, but 160, thus far, for the year, a decline from last year’s number.  Inspector Torres also stated 



that there were 78 requests to investigate received in quarter two, a number she found to be 

average, as the office usually receives about 80 per quarter.  Inspector Torres further stated that 

the number of requests to investigate in quarter one was 100, and 178 year to date.  Of the 78 

requests to investigate, the office only opened nine cases, as compared to the 22 cases it opened 

during quarter one, as the other 69 requests received during quarter two were not opened due to 

jurisdictional incompatibility.  Ms. Torres further stated that the office closed 16 investigations 

during quarter two, which she believed was a very good number for only five agents and because 

some cases took months or years to investigate, due to the fact that the office had to wait on people 

or entities outside of the office to take appropriate courses of action.  Inspector Torres also stated 

that the office published 18 of 27 closed cases on its website under the reports tab, which is where 

she referred anyone to who wanted to know more about the types of cases that the agents 

investigate.  Inspector Torres stated that in years past, very few reports had been published.  

Finally, Ms. Torres stated that the office currently had 29 open cases, 20 of which were in active 

investigation status or in write up. 

 

Inspector Torres proudly stated that the special agents’ side of the office was now fully staffed 

with five agents who were all full law enforcement officers and retired state troopers.  While Ms. 

Torres congratulated all the troopers who had received a raise during this month and during 2017, 

she stated that those raises made it hard for the Office of Inspector General to find special agents 

to add to her staff.   

 

The Inspector stated that the office has three key performance indicators that it reports to the 

Management and Performance Hub quarterly.  The first of these was the number of requested 

informal advisory opinions, which was 101 for quarter two.  The second was the average number 

of business days it took for the office to respond to an informal advisory opinion, which was 1.29 

for quarter two.  The final indicator was the number of recommendations the office made to reduce 

waste, inefficiency, and fraud, and improve integrity, which was 12 for quarter two, or 23 year to 

date. 

 

Inspector Torres announced that the formal approval of the re-adoption of Title 42 of the Indiana 

Administrative Code in its entirety with no changes occurred, and that Title 40 would be sun setting 

at the end of 2019, but that the office would begin working on it later this year.   

 

Ms. Torres also announced that the office was in the process of ethics officer audit, which consisted 

of three phases.  She stated that during phase 1, it was discovered that 34 agencies did not current 

ethics officer designations on file, as their agency head and/or ethics officer was no longer in their 

position(s).  Ms. Torres stated that all of the agency that were a part of phase 1 have already 

submitted new ethics officer designations to the Office of Inspector General.  Inspector Torres 

explained that an ethics officer designation occurred when an agency head designated an ethics 

officer for that agency, which was a requirement.  Ms. Torres stated that there were still four 

outstanding designations due to the need for assistance or leaves of absences, amongst other issues.  

Ms. Torres then explained phase 2, which occurred when the agency had the same agency head 

and same ethics officer, but used an old form, wherein if one of those two changed, the designation 



itself was no longer effective, prompting the office to change the form.  Ms. Torres further 

explained that there will be a phase 3, just to make sure every agency is using the updated form.   

 

The Inspector then discussed the two half day conferences that her office holds, which are the 

Auditor & Investigator Conference and the Legal & Ethics Conference.  She explained that these 

two conferences used to be one, but are now separate.  She stated that the Legal & Ethics 

Conference was for lawyers and ethics officers while the Auditor & Investigator conference was 

geared toward auditors and investigators.  Inspector Torres stated that the Auditor & Investigator 

Conference was held on June 5, 2018, and had 206 attendees and speakers from both the Indiana 

State Police and the State Board of Accounts.  Ms. Torres finally announced that the 2019 Auditor 

& Investigator Conference would be held on June 4, 2019 and the Legal & Ethics Conference 

would be held on the afternoon of Tuesday, November 13, 2018.   

 

Inspector Torres lastly discussed the budget for fiscal year 2019, stating that the office had reverted 

5.1%, but that she believed this was due to the fact that there were three vacant positions 

throughout various parts of the year.  She also stated that the budget for the office was the same as 

last year’s and that the budget for fiscal year 2019 for the Commission’s expenses, including 

mileage, lodging, and per diem, was $12,000.00. 

 

     IV.       Consideration of Post-Employment Restrictions Waiver 

       For Lori Buttram, Human Services Consultant 2 

       Presented by Latosha Higgins, Managing Attorney/Ethics Officer 

       Jennifer Walthall, Secretary 

       Family & Social Services Administration 

 

Managing Attorney and Ethics Officer Latosha Higgins and Secretary Jennifer Walthall presented 

a post-employment waiver on Lori Buttram’s behalf.  Ms. Buttram currently serves as Human 

Services Consultant 2 for the Family & Social Services Administration.  Ms. Buttram came before 

the Commission to obtain permission to waive the cooling off period of the post-employment rule 

as it related to her potential employment with Evansville Vanderburgh School Corporation.  At 

Evansville Vanderburgh School Corporation, Ms. Buttram would serve as Lead Caregiver for one 

of the elementary schools within the Evansville Vanderburgh School Corporation, requiring her to 

adhere to childcare licensing regulations, plan learning activities, ensure child safety, keep 

developmental observations and assessments current, participate in continuing education and 

professional development training, and organize and maintain training records and other 

documents for annual licensing inspections.  Ms. Buttram would be required to have contact with 

the Office of Early Childhood and Out of School Learning during annual inspections in order to 

provide required documentation, but would not be making licensing decisions and her supervisor 

would have the remaining interaction.  The Commission believed that Ms. Buttram had complied 

with the requirements of the waiver and that she thoroughly understood the post-employment 

restrictions rule regarding the cooling off period and how it applied to this potential post-

employment opportunity.  Based on the aforementioned, Commissioner Noel moved to approve 



the Post-Employment Restrictions Waiver and Commissioner Gilroy seconded the motion which 

passed (4-0). 

 

     V.       Consideration of Post-Employment Restrictions Waiver 

       For Arthur Logsdon, former Assistant Commissioner 

       Presented by Deana Smith, Attorney/Ethics Officer 

       Kristina Box, State Health Commissioner 

       Indiana State Department of Health 

 

Attorney and Ethics Officer, Deana Smith, and State Health Commissioner, Dr. Kristina Box, 

presented a post-employment waiver on behalf of Arthur Logsdon.  Mr. Logsdon previously served 

as the Assistant Commissioner for the Department.  Mr. Logsdon came before the Commission to 

obtain permission to waive the cooling off period of the post-employment rule as it related to his 

potential employment with Hirons & Company Communications.  At Hirons & Company 

Communications, Mr. Logsdon would be writing and proofreading the website as well as other 

communication vehicles, which creates the potential for Mr. Logsdon to have contact with the 

Department.  The Commission believed that Mr. Logsdon understood the related ethics rule 

regarding the cooling off period and how it applied to the relationships amongst the State, the 

Department, and Hirons & Company Communications.  The Commission also believed that Mr. 

Logsdon had complied with the requirements of the waiver, and therefore, Commissioner Gilroy 

moved to approve the Post-Employment Restrictions Waiver and Commissioner Finnerty 

seconded the motion which passed (4-0). 

 

     VI.       Consideration of Post-Employment Restrictions Waiver 

       For Stephan Summers, Project Manager 

       Presented by Christopher Serak, Director of Prequalification/Ethics Officer 

       Alison Grand, Chief Legal Counsel 

       Indiana Department of Transportation 

 

Director of Prequalification and Ethics Officer, Christopher Serak, and Chief Legal Counsel, 

Alison Grant, presented a post-employment waiver on behalf of Stephan Summers.  Mr. Summers 

currently serves as Project Manager for the Department.  Mr. Summers came before the 

Commission to obtain permission to waive the cooling off period of the post-employment rule as 

it related to his potential employment with Troyer Group.  Mr. Summers would be working to 

develop and manage Troyer Group’s design projects, which he believes will result in contact with 

Department personnel in the natural execution of transportation design projects.  The Commission 

believed that Mr. Logsdon could observe the particular matter restriction of the post-employment 

rule and refrain from being involved with any contract or other matter on behalf of Troyer Group 

in which he personally and substantially participated in as a Department employee.  The 

Commission also believed that Mr. Summers had complied with the requirements of the post-

employment waiver, and therefore, Commissioner Noel moved to approve the Post-Employment 

Restrictions Waiver and Commissioner Gilroy seconded the motion which passed (4-0). 

 



    VII.        Director’s Report 

 

State Ethics Director, Jen Cooper, reported that 27 informal advisory opinions had been issued 

since the last Commission meeting, mostly dealing with conflicts of interest, post-employment 

restrictions, outside employment, use of state property, and ghost employment.   

 

Next, Ms. Cooper announced that the annual Legal & Ethics Conference had been set for 1:00 

p.m. until 4:30 p.m. on November 13, 2018.   

 

Lastly, Ms. Cooper stated that Arvin Copeland’s public hearing was previously scheduled to take 

place after today’s meeting, but that it had been rescheduled for August 9, 2018, as Mr. Copeland 

recently hired an attorney who needed to return from out of town and get up to speed on this matter.  

Ms. Cooper further stated that the Office of Inspector General and Mr. Copeland’s attorney were 

still working together to come up with deadline dates.   

 

    VIII.      Adjournment 

 

Commissioner Noel moved to adjourn the public meeting of the State Ethics Commission and 

Commissioner Gilroy seconded the motion, which passed (4-0). 

 

The public meeting adjourned at 10:30 a.m. 










	Mins 7-12-18.pdf
	Rusyniak, Dr. Daniel FSSA 7-30-18

